
CITY OF ELK RIVER 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

HELD AT FIRE STATION #2 
MINUTES OF WEDNESDAY, November 20th, 2013 

 
The Safety Committee meeting began at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Members present: T. John Cunningham, Safety Coordinator; Jennifer Johnson, Administration; 

Bob Kluntz, Police; Vickie Berg, Liquor Stores; Lauren Wipper, Human 
Resources; Joe Pipenhagen, Streets; Katie Haase, Fire Department; Mike Thiry, 
Utilities; Steve Benoit, Recreation; Eric Volk, Water Department; Gary Lore, 
Building Maintenance; Laura Estby, Ice Arena 

 
Members absent: Jeff Smith, FABS; Dale Eckert, WWTP; Josh Baas, Parks  
  
 
1. Approve the October 16th, 2013, Safety Committee Minutes   

Minutes were approved. 
  
2. Anoka Tech Update 
 Nothing noted.   
 
4. Safety Training 

Chief Cunningham provided a quick update on safety training. He noted that we had a good 
turnout for the mandatory AWAIR/Right To Know/Blood Borne Pathogen training sessions.  
 
Lauren Wipper thanked everyone for attending with the short notice that had been given.  
 
John Cunningham mentioned that he looked at years past when we had spread out the training 
over the course of a year versus offering all of the mandatory training in one session. He 
commented that for tracking purposes it is easier to look over a two day period to follow up 
with who all received the required training.  
 
Chief Cunningham asked what the City staffs’ comments have been in regards to the training. 
The Safety Committee noted that overall the trainer, Diane Rollins, does the best that she can 
with the topics that need to be covered. Chief Cunningham commented that Diane Rollins takes 
the time to look at the files from training sessions she has held in the past with the City to see 
what she has already covered, so she can cater some of the information to fit our 
needs/situations.  
 
Chief Cunningham also noted possibly exploring an online safety training option that the Safety 
Committee could demo to see if it would be a beneficial training tool. Some of the challenges we 
face there; however, is making sure the technology is available for all staff.  
 
Chief Cunningham discussed that on December 1st the new MSDS reporting sheets will be 
implemented. Chief Cunningham noted that the new MSDS sheets would be automatically 
uploaded into our online software. The vendor that we go through for the MSDS online 
software offers an online training that Chief Cunningham is looking into offering to managers 
and directors. The managers and directors would then be responsible for relaying the MSDS 
changes to their staff.  
 



Lauren Wipper asked if the online MSDS software is active, to which Gary Lore provided an 
update that the software still needs to be set up by IT for the rest of the staff to use. Also, 
training is needed for those who will be installing MSDS sheets into the online software 
program. Lauren Wipper enquired if each department is responsible for installing the software. 
Gary Lore responded that it would be the responsibility of each department to load their own 
software, since department heads will be best able to determine what their needs are in regards 
to the software. Chief Cunningham noted that a few individuals have been appointed to help 
with installing the program, which Gary Lore suggested that department heads work with these 
individuals to delegate this task.  
 
Chief Cunningham mentioned that IT is working on installing a shortcut, so when City staff type 
in the online address it will automatically redirect to the MSDS online software application. It 
was also noted that RaeAnn Gardner is working on creating a tab on the Intranet that will be a 
link to the online MSDS software. Training for this program will be rolled out to department 
heads and division managers at the next quarterly meeting. The intent is to get the training 
completed before the links are running for staff to use.  
 
Gary Lore noted that when a product’s MSDS sheet changes the new software will automatically 
send you the update for us to review. Mr. Lore questioned if all employee users would need to 
login with a password. Chief Cunningham responded that there is a viewer login that does not 
require a password. It’s a public link that allows you to search for MSDS sheets by using the 
chemicals name or a specific location (i.e. Station 1). As a user, anyone can go into the online 
software and request an MSDS sheet be added.  
 
Chief Cunningham stated that before the January session he will roll out a separate training 
seminar for the Safety Committee, so that we will be prepared to handle questions and know 
how the system works. Chief Cunningham also made note of the fail safe system, which is a 
backup fax service that allows you to fax MSDS sheets to any fax machine for a cost. Even with 
the new software, Chief Cunningham mentioned that our current MSDS binders will at some 
point go into archive, since they need to be maintained. 
 
Chief Cunningham informed the Safety Committee that he is currently working on setting up 
driver training. The information for the training will be sent out to the directors, so they are able 
to schedule appointments.  

 
5. Accident Reviews 

September 19th, 2013: “Employee was trimming tree branches along paved trail with a pole saw. 
Was stung by bees in the stomach, chin and right ear.” 
 
Chief Cunningham noted that the action taken of reminding the employee to try and be more 
alert for bees was the best remedy for this incident. No further recommendations were made.  
 
October 16th, 2013: “Employee was repairing a light fixture. Wire came loose and made contact 
with left thumb. Caused burn on each thumb and caused employee to loose (lose) balance and 
cut finger.”  
 
Gary Lore provided more details on the incident. Gary Lore said the employee changed the light 
fixture and then went back to the fixture and found it was not working. The employee then 
grabbed the insulated wire to see if the light flickered, which would indicate a bad connection. 
He lost his footing in the process, which caused his hand to slip and hit a bare wire and also at 
the same time he made contact with a metal beam creating a circuit.    



 
Gary Lore noted that he discussed with the employee that in the future he should go back and 
turn off the power before rechecking electrical connections.   
 
Chief Cunningham reiterated that the Building Maintenance Supervisor has advised staff that the 
procedure going forward will be if an employee senses a problem with a connection then the 
power should be disconnected before trying to identify the problem.  
 
Jennifer Johnson commented that the employee’s footing was a factor in what caused the 
incident, to which Gary Lore mentioned that they have the safest ladders they can buy.  
 
Chief Cunningham asked Mike Thiry from Utilities if he had any additional safety procedure 
recommendations. Mike Thiry mentioned using protective electrical gloves. Gary Lore said most 
of the time they are dealing with 110 volts, which usually does not require the use of personal 
protective equipment (PPE). No further recommendations were made.  
 
October 23rd, 2013: “Employee was closing trunk on squad. Left hand was squad near the edge 
of trunk. Closed trunk lid on thumb.” 
 
The action taken and recommendation was to discuss the importance of hand placement. No 
further discussion.  
 
October 23rd, 2013: “Employee was chasing suspect. Suspect ran to house and attempted to 
close door on officer. Officer blocked door with left hand causing contusion on palm of hand.”  
 
No recommendations were made. 
 
November 15th, 2013: “Employee was putting heavy cast iron grate back into place. Grate 
slipped and employee tried to catch it. Missed grate but tweaked writs (wrist). Sprained left 
wrist.” 
 
Chief Cunningham noted that he would recommend that if something starts to fall just let the 
item go. 
 
Lauren Wipper talked with Rodney Schreifels, the Park Maintenance Supervisor, about what else 
the City could do to mitigate this type of incident. Cast iron is fragile and therefore they were 
concerned that if it fell it would have broken. Lauren mentioned that Rodney Schreifels said 
when they removed the cast iron grates a week or two ago they tipped them up and put them on 
cones to make them easier to move. However, when the tree planters and electricians were 
working at the site they moved the grates. Lauren Wipper said Rodney Schreifels mentioned the 
possibility of in the future using a skid loader to move them.  

 
6. Department Concerns/Updates 

 
Fire Department  
Chief Cunningham noted that we received a request to outsource the first aid kit restocking 
responsibilities. Chief Cunningham said that he brought this request up to some of the City 
directors; however, the consensus was that to outsource the restocking of first aid kits was a 
fairly significant cost that is currently not a priority. The impression was that it is task we can 
take care of in-home at this point in time. Chief Cunningham noted that if there are first aid 
supplies that need to be re-stocked you can get that order filled by using the City’s supply request 



form on SharePoint. Chief Cunningham informed the Committee that OSHA does not have a 
mandated list of first aid kit supplies that are required. Each department may have slightly 
different needs and therefore we provide re-stock of items that are found most often in first aid 
kits. Chief Cunningham did mention that there are items in the kits that do expire so personnel 
should be checking and replacing those items.    

 
Streets 
No concerns.  
 
Police Department 
Captain Kluntz introduced Amy Humphrey the new Senior Administrative Assistant for the 
Police Department and noted that she would be attending the Safety Committee meetings in the 
future.  
 
Captain Kluntz mentioned that the Police Chief wanted him to bring up the City policy of 
offering hepatitis B vaccinations. The Police Chief would like to contract with a local clinic 
where staff could go to receive the vaccine. Lauren Wipper said in the past they have always used 
Sherburne County, so she contacted them and found out that they no longer offer that service. 
Lauren Wipper commented that we would need to find a different resource for that vaccine.  
 
Captain Kluntz said that the Police Chief’s other concern was if it would be possible to have a 
standardized clinic for pre-employment physicals or maybe just one place that we could send all 
employees for health related concerns/issues. Lauren Wipper said for an injured employee it 
should be there choice for where they would like to receive medical care, but for employees that 
do not have an established relationship at a health clinic than recommending a certain clinic 
would be fine. Chief Cunningham noted that he looked into this option for the Fire Department, 
but the local clinics did not offer all of the necessary testing and examinations (i.e. chest x-rays), 
which is why they have been sending personnel to different clinics to collect all of the testing 
needed.  
 

 Parks Department 
No concerns.  

 
 Recreation Department 

No concerns. 
 
Water Department 
No concerns.  
 
Utilities 
No concerns. 
 
Administration 
No concerns. 

  
 Human Resources 
 No concerns. 
 

Liquor Stores  
 No concerns.  
 



Fire Department 
No concerns.  

 
7. Old Business 
 Nothing noted.  
 
8. New Business 

Chief Cunningham commented that with winter drawing near that we should make sure we 
notify Building Maintenance if there are sidewalk concerns. Gary Lore noted that it is important 
that people are careful and aware of icy conditions.  
 
Chief Cunningham also mentioned that he has requested a safety tab, which would include our 
previous Safety Committee minutes, and also a close-call feedback page be installed on the 
Intranet.   
 
Chief Cunningham wants the Safety Committee to look at our safety policies and procedures to 
organize and update them this winter. Chief Cunningham would like to see by department, 
division, or a member(s) from the Safety Committee take the lead on being the subject matter 
expert on the three topics of: AWAIR, Right to Know, & Blood Borne Pathogens.  
 
Lauren Wipper enquired if we have a single lock out, tag out policy that applies across the board 
or if each piece of equipment had its own policy. Chief Cunningham commented that there 
should be an overall policy, but then there is a procedure for each device.  
 
Captain Kluntz asked if our contract with Anoka Tech is still in existence, and if so, is there 
anything in our contract that would allow them to consult us on updating our policies and 
procedures. Chief Cunningham responded that currently Anoka Tech does not offer this service. 
They prefer to be the training provider, and therefore do not get involved in policy development. 
Chief Cunningham did mention; however, that we could have a process whereby new policies 
would be reviewed first by himself and then also by the City Attorney.  
 
Lauren Wipper suggested that a copy of each of the safety policies be distributed to all of the 
members of the Safety Committee for us to review. Chief Cunningham mentioned he could get 
copies for everyone at our next meeting to evaluate. Ultimately, he wants to make sure that the 
expectation of the Safety Committee is that we are involved in the process of updating and 
creating our own policies.  

 
9. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting of the Elk River Safety Committee was adjourned 
at 3:02 p.m. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Katie Haase 
Recording Secretary 

 


